
 

 

 
 
Meeting 
 

North Whiteley Development Forum 
 

Date and Time 
 

Monday, 15th July, 2024 at 6.00 pm. 

Venue 
 

Virtual via Microsoft Teams and streamed live on YouTube at 
www.youtube.com/winchestercc 

 
Note: This meeting is being held virtually, members of the public who wish to watch 
this meeting live may do so via the Councils YouTube page at 
youtube.com/WinchesterCC.  
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1.   Appointment of vice-chairperson for the 2024/25 municipal year  
 As this is the first meeting of the Forum of the 2024/25 municipal year, it will 

be necessary to appoint a vice chairperson of the Forum. (Members should 
note that in the event of the chairperson being unable to attend a meeting, 
only a Winchester City Council member can chair a meeting of the forum) 
 

2.   Apologies  
 To record the names of apologies given and deputy members who are 

attending the meeting in place of appointed Members (where appropriate) 
 

3.   Disclosures of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in matters 

to be discussed.   
 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests in accordance with 
legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 

4.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on the 15 February 2024 (Pages 7 - 
12) 

 That the minutes of the meeting be signed as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

youtube.com/WinchesterCC


5.   Public Participation.  
 To receive and note questions asked and statements made from members of 

the public on general matters of interest and/or matters relating to the work of 
the Forum 
 
Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at the forum, 
provided they have registered to speak three working days in advance. 
Please contact Democratic Services by 5pm on the 10 July 2024 via 
democracy@winchester.gov.uk or (01962) 848 264 to register to speak and 
for further details. 
 

6.  Governance arrangements for the future of the town forum - verbal 
update - Chair  
 

7.  Development update - verbal update - Jeff Davies and Hilary Oliver  
 

Laura Taylor 
Chief Executive 

8 July 2024 
 
Agenda Contact: Matthew Watson, Democratic Services Officer 
 
mwatson@winchester.gov.uk 01962 848 317 
 
*With the exception of exempt items, agendas, reports and previous minutes are 
available on the Council’s Website via the following link: 
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/councillors-committees  
 
All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are available to 

view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open to inspection at the 

offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our use of paper we do not 

provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at meetings. We do however, provide a 

number of copies of the agenda front sheet at the meeting which contains the QR Code 

opposite. Scanning this code enables members of the public to easily access all of the 

meeting papers on their own electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or 

QR code App over the QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you 

will be redirected to the agenda pack. 

 

 

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/councillors-committees
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


MEMBERSHIP 
 
The membership of the Forum is: 

• Winchester City Council (6 representatives - including Chairperson of the Forum 

plus deputy) 

• Hampshire County Council (2 representatives) 

• Fareham Borough Council (1 representative plus deputy) 

• Eastleigh Borough Council (1 representative)  

• Whiteley Parish Council (1 representative plus deputy) 

• Curdridge Parish Council (1 representative)  

• Botley Parish Council (1 representative plus deputy) 

 
 
North Whiteley Development Forum 
 
Cllr Achwal V Winchester City Council 
Cllr Achwal S Winchester City Council 
Cllr Lee Winchester City Council 
Cllr Miller Winchester City Council 
Cllr Porter Winchester City Council 
Cllr Small Winchester City Council 
Cllr Wallace Hampshire County Council 
Cllr Burton Fareham Borough Council 
Cllr Pretty Eastleigh Borough Council 
Cllr Evans Whiteley Town Council 
Cllr Cooper Botley Parish Council 
Cllr Bodger Curdridge Parish Council 
 
In addition, the following are nominated deputies to the Forum: 
 
Cllr Bolton (Winchester City Council), Cllr Chamberlain (Winchester City Council), 

Cllr Latham (Winchester City Council), Cllr Briggs (Hampshire County 
Council), Cllr Martin (Fareham Borough Council) and Cllr Burden (Curdridge 
Parish Council) 

 
Officers: 

• Lead Officer - Julie Pinnock 

• Implementation Officer - Hilary Oliver 

• Community Worker - TBC 
 
Quorum  
The Forum will be quorate if five voting representatives are present 



 
 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
Development Fora – Terms of Reference 
  
The fora have no formal decision-making powers but can advise and make 
recommendations on relevant issues. 
  
Primary objectives of the fora: 
  

1. Meet 3 times per year.  Virtual meetings will continue. 
 

2. Comment and advise on strategic matters related to the implementation of the 
MDA. 

 
3. Monitor and comment on progress relating to the development of the MDA 

including the implementation of planning conditions and requirements of 
planning obligations (s106 agreements) and s278 agreements (highway 
works). 

 
4. Monitor and comment on community development activities within the 

development area and provide advice on how these should progress. 
 

5. Support the establishment of appropriate local democratic structures for the 
emerging community. 

 
6. Be wound down once governance arrangements are established, 

  
How this will be achieved: 
  

1. Each meeting will receive the following input: 
 

a. Update on the physical development of the MDA (from the 
developer). 
 

b. Report on the community development activities and any 
issues arising within the MDA. 

 
c. Discussion on infrastructure. 

 
2. Other matters will be brought to the forum as and when required. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 Key stages of the fora: 
  

Stage 1 – Planning 
  

Stage 2 – Emerging Stage 3 – Establishing 

Start: Initial master 
planning 
End: Outline planning 
consent / start on site. 
  

Start: Start on site 
End: Establishment of a parish 
council, or other suitable 
democratic body as applicable. 

Start: Establishment of a 
parish council, or other 
suitable democratic body as 
applicable. 
End: New governance 
arrangements established 

·       Act as a sounding 
board where ideas, 
options and issues 
relating to the 
development can be 
considered before 
becoming part of the 
formal planning 
process. 

·       Consider and advise 
upon the infrastructure 
required 

  

·       Receive updates on the 
progress of development and 
compliance with relevant 
planning conditions and 
S106/S278 agreements 

·       Input into creation of a 
community development 
strategy 
  

  

·       Receive updates on 
progress in establishing 
the community and any 
emerging issues 

·       Consider and advise 
upon a strategy for the 
ownership and 
management of the 
social infrastructure and 
community assets. 

·       Receive updates on 
the progress of 
development and 
compliance with relevant 
planning conditions and 
S106/S278 agreements 

  

Lead: Service Lead – Built 
Environment 

Lead: Service Lead – Built 
Environment 

Lead: Service Lead – 
Community & Wellbeing 

  
  
  
Method of working and voting rights 
All representatives are expected to seek to reach conclusions by general 
consensus.  Where any voting representatives on the Forum requires a formal vote 
to be taken, this shall be by a show of hands by those voting representatives present 
and voting (as per the membership set out above). 
  
Public Participation procedure 
There will be a period of 10 minutes maximum at the beginning of each forum 
meeting when the Chair will invite the public, including local interest groups, to raise 
any general matters of interest and/or matters relating to the work of the forum.  
  
An individual speaker will be limited to a maximum of three minutes per agenda 
item.  Where a number of members of the public wish to speak they will be 
encouraged to agree the allocated maximum ten minutes between then. 
  
The Chairperson will retain discretion to manage the public speaking process and 
may limit individual speakers to less than three minutes or take other steps 
necessary in order to maximise public participation in an appropriate way.  



  
Members and officers will not provide an immediate response to public comments 
raised from the floor.  All comments and queries will be noted, and the Chair will 
invite officers and/or members to respond to specific points during the round table 
debate and discussion amongst forum members that follows. 
  
Members of the public should contact the Democratic Services Officer at least 3 
working days before the meeting (by 5pm,10 July 2024) so that as many people who 
wish to speak can be accommodated during the public participation sessions. 
  
Once the period of public participation has drawn to a close, there will be an 
opportunity for elected members who are not on the forum (i.e., cabinet or ward 
members) to speak in advance of questions and debate amongst forum members at 
the Chair’s discretion. 
  
The forum will then debate the item with any conclusions and recommendations 
recorded. 
 
Filming and broadcast notification 
 
This meeting will be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s YouTube site.and 
may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the public – 
please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. Please note that the video recording is subtitled, but you may have to 
enable your device to see them (advice on how to do this is on the meeting page). 
 
 

   
 

mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

NORTH WHITELEY DEVELOPMENT FORUM 
 

Thursday, 15 February 2024 
Attendance: 

 
Councillors 

 
Cllr Achwal V (Winchester City Council) (Chairperson) 

 
Cllr Achwal S, Winchester City Council 
Cllr Chamberlain, Winchester City 
Council 
Cllr Small, Winchester City Council 
Cllr Pearson, Winchester City Council 
Cllr Wallace, Winchester City Council 
Cllr Woodward, Hampshire County 
Council  
 

Cllr Lumby, Hampshire County Council 
Cllr Pretty, Eastleigh Borough Council 
Cllr Evans, Whiteley Town Council 
Cllr Cooper, Botley Parish Council 
Cllr Bodger, Curdridge Parish Council 

 
Apologies for Absence:  
Cllr Burton (Fareham Borough Council) 
 
Other members in attendance: 
 
Cllr(s)   Porter and Tod 
 
Video recording of the meeting 
 
 

 
1.    APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies were noted as above. 
 

2.    DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  
 
No disclosures of interests were made. 
 

3.    CHAIRPERSON'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
No announcements were made. 
 

4.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION.  
 

Philip Gibbs addressed the forum and expressed concern about inconsistent and 
unclear road signage in the development area affecting safety. He highlighted 
the need for road adoption by the County Council and sought the forum's 
assistance plan for road adoption and rectification of signage issues to ensure 
compliance and safety. 

Jeff Davis of Tetra Tech responded and advised of the following 

Public Document Pack

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

https://www.youtube.com/live/8UuR7HJvsSk?si=VVr1J_V4jt9MWZNe


 
 

 
 

1. That roads were planned for adoption under Section 38 of the 
Highways Act, but this process would be delayed due to ongoing 
construction activities and the need for these activities to decrease 
before the local authority considers adoption. 

2. He clarified that current speed limit signs, particularly those indicating 
speeds other than 30 mph, were not part of the final design intended 
for adoption. These signs were temporarily installed to control speeds 
amidst construction. 

He agreed to conduct a review of the temporary speed limit signs, especially 
where 10 mph signs may have been incorrectly placed by developers or not 
removed after the completion of nearby construction work. 
 

5.    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON THE 11 DECEMBER 2023  
 
 
That following a question, the Chair advised that she had received an update 
from officers regarding outstanding items on the previous minutes and she would 
update members accordingly. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 11 December 
2023 be approved and adopted. 

 
6.    DEVELOPER AND IMPLEMENTATION OFFICER UPDATE INCLUDING AN 

UPDATE REGARDING BUS SERVICE AND WHITELEY WAY ROADWORKS  
 

Jeff Davis (Tetra Tech) provided the forum with a presentation which had been 
made available on the council’s website. (available here) The presentation 
covered a range of issues, which included the following: 

1. Overview - Highways 
2. Phase 1 Bluebell Way Area 
3. Strategic Cycleway: Footpath 9 
4. Phase 2 - Off-Site Whiteley Way 
5. Phase 3 - Station Hill - Whiteley Way / Curbridge Way to Whiteley 

Way 
6. Open Space – Delivery Update 
7. Bus Service 

In addition, he advised of the following specific points. 

1. Phase 1 Bus Service commenced on 9th Jan 2023. Currently the 
contract is out to tender as the initial tendering process did not 
succeed. This time the tender is for a longer period. The current bus 
service contract has been extended to 30 June 2024 but faced viability 
issues, with an average of 3 passengers per journey as of Feb 2024. 

2. Further traffic management is under consideration. 
3. The Southern Local Centre contract was nearing agreement, with 

discussions ongoing with the Winchester City Council Planning team. 

Page 8

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=174&MId=4303&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

4. Footpath 9 Phase 1 s278 legal agreement agreed in principle but still 
not complete as additional work required for equestrian visibility. 
Construction delayed to spring 2024. 

5. Footpath 9 Phase 2 being designed with planning application to follow 
summer 2024.  

6. The works to off-site Whiteley Way to commence 11th March 2024 . 
communications for advance warnings about construction starting 
were planned. Target completion by late 2025/early 2026. 

7. Whiteley Way and Curbridge Way opened to through traffic on 14th 
Sept 2023, with traffic management measures implemented. 

8. Detailed planning permission had been granted for 3102 houses, with 
a significant number already started or occupied. 

9. Open space development updates include completed allotments and 
LEAP areas, with ongoing landscape works. 

Members asked several questions and made comments regarding the following: 

1. Concerns were raised about the lack of directional signage at the mini 
roundabout on Whiteley Way, particularly signs directing to Tesco and 
other local amenities.  

2. Regarding the four-year extension of bus services, a question was 
asked about whether the bus company had considered adjusting the 
timetable to align with school opening hours to facilitate use by 
students and parents. 

3. An update was requested on the provision of bus shelters within the 
area. 

4. Regarding the development of the play area, it was asked about the 
legal formalities pending completion and whether the council could 
assist in expediting these processes. 

5. The necessity for post boxes in North Whiteley was highlighted, 
especially in Whiteley Meadows and Curbridge Meadows, due to the 
area's growing population.  

6. The importance of aligning bus schedules with train times at Swanwick 
and Botley stations was emphasised to improve connectivity and 
usability. 

7. Issues were raised regarding parking problems at the Test Rd and 
Avon Rd junction, including near-miss accidents and obstructions 
caused by vehicles parking on footpaths.  

8. A suggestion was made to consider extending bus routes through 
Hedge End to Eastleigh, to enhance viability by increasing usage 
through improved access to Whiteley's amenities. 

9. Concerns were raised regarding parking issues on Brunel Way. 

These points were responded to by Jeff Davis, and Hilary Oliver accordingly. 

Hilary Oliver, Implementation Officer, Winchester City Council, addressed the 
forum and provided updates on the following which included responses to 
several questions received from residents (full details of the questions from 
residents are attached to these minutes) 

Page 9



 
 

 
 

1. Confirmation from Hampshire County Council on the anticipated 
planning application for the secondary school, construction was 
planned to start in 2025 and complete in 2027. 

2. Progress on the Southern Local Centre, with contracts expected to be 
signed soon, and a planning application to follow. The Northern Local 
Centre was progressing, and discussions were ongoing about a 
community centre in the north, with a temporary solution being 
explored. 

3. Updates on Play Areas, with Play Area 2 opening shortly and Play 
Area 1 to follow.  

4. A second entrance to Hangmans Copse was expected to be 
completed this year. 

5. Queries about parking issues, specifically the need for double yellow 
lines at the flats opposite Redpoll Way, were under consideration. 

6. Discussions on finishing streetlights on the cycleway to Botley Station 
were ongoing. 

7. Sports pitches and allotments off Tortoiseshell Close were expected to 
be completed by mid-year, with works starting in April and May, 
respectively. 

8. A clean-up operation was planned to address debris and metal left in 
the area, with specific attention to Monks Brook Road. 

9. Questions about retail development timing and additional parking at 
Whiteley Leisure Centre were addressed. 

10. The situation on Test Road and Avon Road was being actively 
managed. 

11. Updates on footpath developments around Whiteley Way and 
Segensworth roundabout were provided, including adjustments to 
speed limits and ongoing negotiations with Network Rail. 

Members asked several questions and made comments regarding the following: 

1. Further information was sought regarding the development and 
opening schedule of a second primary school in North Whiteley. 

2. A question was raised about the status of a new telephone mast that 
had been installed, but not yet activated and it was advised that it was 
anticipated that the mast will go live at the end of March/early April. 

3. That following a question from a member of the public, it was felt that 
an opportunity had been missed to provide a safe connection to 
Burridge Scout hut. 

4. Regarding the completion works required for the cycle path along  
Botley Road, officers were asked to request that these works be 
undertaken during the night.  

These points were responded to by Hilary Oliver accordingly who advised that 
further responses would be provided to the forum following the meeting. 

 
7.    FUTURE OF THE FORUM (VERBAL UPDATE)  

 

Councillor Martin Tod, Leader of the Council, introduced the agenda item 
concerning the future of the North Whiteley Forum. He outlined the current status 
of Winchester City Council's support and hosting of the Forum, including the 

Page 10



 
 

 
 

annual appointment and confirmation of terms of reference through the Cabinet. 
Councillor Tod highlighted the evolving context that necessitates a revision of 
these terms, especially considering the significant changes in the representation 
and needs of the Whiteley Town Council and the broader North Whiteley 
development area. He felt  that the residents of North Whiteley should have a 
more significant say in these discussions. 

He sought feedback from forum members on various aspects, including the 
proposal for the Town Council to host the forum, the format of future meetings, 
meeting frequency, and the composition of the forum's membership to better 
reflect the resident population of North Whiteley. Councillor Tod also raised 
questions about the broader implications for planning and stakeholder 
involvement, given the development's current status and the need to ensure that 
the voices of North Whiteley's residents were adequately represented in future 
discussions and decisions. 

Members raised questions and made comments which could be summarised as: 

1. That areas such as Hedge End, Fair Oak and Botley were impacted by 
the traffic implications of the North Whiteley development, and so 
representation on any future forum was suggested to safeguard the 
interests of affected residents. 

2. The necessity for continued participation by at least one representative 
from Curbridge was requested, given the area's proximity to North 
Whiteley. Additionally, the valuable support provided by Winchester 
officers was acknowledged, with a request for their ongoing involvement 
to ensure the development's positive progress. 

3. Botley Parish Council expressed support for maintaining a place at the 
forum, highlighting concerns about the bypass delays and the potential for 
Botley to become a destination for North Whiteley residents.  

4. A recommendation was made to extend the forum's current operations for 
an additional 6 to 8 months, citing the ongoing development and the 
critical role of Winchester officers in managing the consortium effectively. 

5. The unique position of Whiteley, straddling Fareham and Winchester 
boroughs, was discussed, with emphasis on the shared interests and 
interdependencies, such as medical facilities and main access points. The 
possibility of a separate or joint forum to address wider Whiteley issues 
was suggested. 

6. A proposal was made for a more focused forum specifically for North 
Whiteley, aimed at fostering real engagement with residents and ensuring 
the integration of new and existing communities. 

7. Concern was raised to guard against the forum becoming a "talking 
shop", and whether its current membership and geographic focus were 
adequately aligned with the interests and needs of the community it 
served. 

8. Questions were raised about the possibility of restructuring the forum to 
ensure more focused and genuine engagement with the community, 
highlighting the need for real interaction and engagement. 

9. A draft term of reference was mentioned as a proposed step forward, 
indicating ongoing progress in addressing community issues, including 
discussions with Hampshire County Council about traffic management 
concerns. 

Page 11



 
 

 
 

10. The necessity of holding meetings in person was underscored as the 
preferred approach to facilitate better engagement and integration of 
residents within the Whiteley community. 

Councillor Tod acknowledged the useful contributions made, and 
summarised the discussion as follows. 

1. He recognised the necessity for continued dialogue, highlighting the 
critical nature of discussions on the various influences affecting North 
Whiteley and the broader community's well-being. 

2. It was agreed that a discussion involving the relevant councils would 
be initiated to explore effective ways to support and enhance the North 
Whiteley community. 

3. Further discussion regarding the future of the forum would continue, 
ensuring that the needs and concerns of the North Whiteley residents 
were adequately met. Any discussions of the way forward, particularly 
concerning the future of the North Whiteley Forum hosted and 
managed by the town council, must involve a plan that meets with the 
collective agreement and satisfaction of all parties involved. 

4. He acknowledged the importance of addressing the challenges faced 
by communities that straddle borders, with a commitment to continue 
discussions on how best to manage these unique community 
dynamics. 

5. A proposal was made to report the next steps to a future meeting of 
the Winchester City Council Cabinet. 

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and concluded at 7.25 pm 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 12


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on the 15 February 2024
	Minutes


